
 1

 

 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda 
 
 

Russ Baggerly, Director 
Mary Bergen, Director 
Bill Hicks, Director 

Pete Kaiser, Director 
James Word, Director 

 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
December 12, 2012 

3:00 P.M. – DISTRICT OFFICE 
 

Right to be heard:  Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any 
item of interest to the public which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  The 
request to be heard should be made immediately before the Board's consideration of the item. 
No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by subdivision (b) of  ¶54954.2 of the Government Code and except that 
members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions 
posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under section 54954.3 of the 
Government Code. 

 
 

1. Public Comments 
     
2. General Manager comments.   
 
3. Board of Director comments. 

 
4. Consent Agenda 
 

a. Minutes of the November 28, 2012 Board Meeting. 
b. Minutes of the November 27, 2012 Board Meeting. 
c. Resolution cancelling the Board meeting of December 26, 2012 

and setting a special meeting for a tour of facilities for December 
19, 2012. 
 

  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Consent Agenda 
 
5. Bills 
 
6. Committee/Manager Reports 
 

a. Recreation Committee Minutes 
 
7. Recommend acceptance of the 2012 Casitas Water Adventure End of 

Season Report. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 



 2

 
8. Recommend approval of a purchase order to Coast Cart, Inc. in the 

amount of $15,851.55 for the purchase of two E-Z Go Carts. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 
9. Discussion regarding the Matilija Dam Design Oversight Group’s meeting 

of December 4, 2012. 
 
10. Information Items: 
 

a. Monthly Cost Analysis for operation of Robles, fisheries and fish 
passage. 

b. Monthly Cost Analysis for Ojai FLOW. 
c. Investment Report. 

 
11. Closed Session 
 

 a. (Govt. Code Sec. 54956.9 (c)) 
Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation (One case). 

  
12. Adjournment  
 

If you require special accommodations for attendance at or participation in this 
meeting, please notify our office 24 hours in advance at (805) 649-2251, ext.  
113.  (Govt. Code Section 54954.1 and 54954.2(a). 



 1

Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District 
Board Meeting Held 
November 28, 2012 

 
 A meeting of the Board of Directors was held November 28, 2012 at 
Casitas' Office, Oak View, California.  Directors Baggerly, Word, Hicks, Bergen 
and Kaiser were present.  Also present were Steve Wickstrum, General 
Manager, Rebekah Vieira, Clerk of the Board, and Attorney, John Mathews.  
There were two staff members and three members of the public in attendance.  
President Baggerly led the group in the flag salute. 

 
1. Public Comments 
 

None 
     
2. General Manager comments.   
 
 Mr. Wickstrum reported on the successful shut down at the Upper Ojai 
pump plant and reservoir and informed the board that it was back in service by 
3:00. 
 
3. Board of Director comments. 
 

Director Kaiser mentioned he checked on the new bait store constructions 
over the weekend and he encouraged the other Directors to view the progress. 
 

President Baggerly asked Dave Woolley, our local Bureau of Reclamation 
representative, to discuss changes at the Bureau.  Mr. Woolley explained that 
Don Glaser has been drawn back to Denver and will keep the Bay Delta issue 
and the Friant water issues renegotiation on his plate.  Jim Arrolio is taking his 
place. Mr. Woolley informed the board that he met with Park Services Manager 
Carol Belser this morning and that they have additional funds to add to our 
agreement.  They will be working on the budgets tomorrow.  He met with the 
Forest Service and told them we want to turn over the operation of the open 
space land over to Casitas.  They have agreed.  There may be some funds 
moved to Casitas and we will start that as an O & M agreement.  There are two 
agreements to operate the open space and we will have to work through that and 
have the solicitor’s approvals.  Mr. Woolley explained that they plan to improve 
the existing fire station and that he will be meeting with Lorraine Walker 
regarding the Ventura River Watershed Council as he is going to manage a grant 
they received to develop a watershed plan for the entire basin. 
 

Director Word arrived to the meeting at 3:08 p.m. 
 

Mr. Woolley added that law enforcement and funding for it will continue.  
There was discussion regarding a request from an individual to use an area in 
the open space land.  The board was informed that the Bureau is planning to 



 2

fence the area across from the park and it will be wildlife friendly with appropriate 
signage. 

 
4. Consent Agenda       APPROVED 
 

a. Minutes of the November 14, 2012 Board Meeting. 
 

 The Consent Agenda was offered by Director Kaiser, seconded by 
Director Bergen and passed. 
 
5. Bills         APPROVED 
 
 On the motion of Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Hicks and passed, 
the bills were approved. 
 
6. Committee/Manager Reports   APPROVED FOR FILING 
 

a. Water Resources Committee Minutes 
b. Executive Committee Minutes 
c. Finance Committee Minutes 

 
On the motion of Director Word, seconded by Director Bergen and 

passed, the Committee/Manager Reports were approved for filing. 
 
7. Recommend acceptance of the fiscal year 2010-2011 Comprehensive 

Annual Financial Report.      APPROVED 
 

Paul Kaymark of Charles Z. Fedak reported that he met with the Finance 
Committee earlier in the month; they reviewed the report and talked about certain 
areas.  It was a good year and we looked at Recreation with a positive for the 
year.  President Baggerly asked if we received an unqualified opinion that we 
have followed all government accounting standards.  Mr. Kaymark replied yes. 
 
 On the motion of Director Bergen, seconded by Director Word and 
passed, the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report was approved. 
 
8. Resolution awarding a contract to Olympus and Associates in the amount 

of $289,362.25 for the Upper Ojai Reservoir Interior Coating and Repair 
Specification No. 12-356.      ADOPTED 

 
  Mr. Wickstrum explained that we are now getting into our single tank 

projects and the prices came in higher than they had been in the last two years.  
This firm did an excellent job with our Oak View Tank, paying attention to safety 
and coordination with neighbors to do the work in a professional manner.   
 
 The resolution was offered by Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Hicks 
and passed by the following roll call vote: 
 



 3

AYES: Directors: Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly  
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
  Resolution is numbered 12-33. 
 
9. Information Items: 
 

a. Recreation Area Report for October, 2012. 
b. Investment Report. 

 
On the motion of Director Word, seconded by Director Hicks and passed, 

the information items were received. 
 

President Baggerly moved the meeting to closed session at 3:24 p.m.   
 
10. Closed Session 
 

 a. (Govt. Code Sec. 54956.9 (c)) 
Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation (One case). 

 
 President Baggerly moved the meeting back into open session at 3:49 
p.m. with Mr. Mathews stating the board discussed one anticipated case and 
there was no formal action taken during closed session. 
 
11. Adjournment  
 
 President Baggerly adjourned the meeting at 3:50 p.m.  
 
 
 
       ________________________ 
       Bill Hicks, Secretary        



 1

Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District 
Special Board Meeting Held 

November 27, 2012 
 

 A special meeting of the Board of Directors was held November 27, 2012 
at Casitas' Office, Oak View, California.  Directors Baggerly, Word, Hicks, Bergen 
and Kaiser were present.  Also present were Steve Wickstrum, General 
Manager, Rebekah Vieira, Clerk of the Board, and Attorney, John Mathews.  
There were no staff members and no members of the public in attendance.  
President Baggerly led the group in the flag salute. 

 
1. Public Comments 

 
None 

     
2. General Manager comments.   
 
 Mr. Wickstrum reported that the planned shutdown is going well. 
 
3. Board of Director comments. 
 

None 
 

4. Closed Session 
 
 a. (Govt. Code Sec. 54956.9 (c)) 

Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation (One case). 
 

President Baggerly moved the meeting to closed session at 3:02 p.m. 
 
 President Baggerly moved the meeting back into open session at 5:04 
p.m. with Mr. Mathews stating that the Board discussed the anticipated litigation 
with general and special counsel.  No specific actions were taken.  
 
5. Adjournment  
 

President Baggerly adjourned the meeting at 5:05 p.m.                
 
 
 
 
 
 
       ____________________________ 

       Bill Hicks, Secretary 
 
 



 CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
  
 
 RESOLUTION CANCELING THE 
 BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING SET FOR DECEMBER 26, 2012 AND  

SCHEDULING A SPECIAL MEETING FOR A TOUR OF FACILITIES TO BE HELD 
DECEMBER 19, 2012 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the second regular meeting of the Board of Directors of Casitas 
Municipal Water District falls on December 26, 2012; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Board of Directors to cancel that meeting; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board would like to hold a special meeting on December 19, 2012 to 
tour district facilities. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of Casitas 
Municipal Water District that the second regular meeting of the Board scheduled for 
December 26, 2012 is hereby canceled and a special meeting is scheduled for December 19, 
2012.   
 
 ADOPTED this 12th day of December, 2012. 
 
     
        ___________________________ 
        Russ Baggerly, President 
        Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
Bill Hicks, Secretary 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
 



































CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  December 6, 2012 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Recreation Committee Meeting of December 3, 2012 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.  Directors Kaiser and Hicks,  
 General Manager Steve Wickstrum 
 Park Services Manager Carol Belser  

 Park Services Officer Aaron Wall 
 
2. Public comments.  None. 

 
3. Board/Management comments. 

PSM Belser stated that during the recent rain event, one tree toppled and one large 
branch fell from an oak tree near unoccupied campsites.  The Committee discussed 
recent work performed by the arborist and tree service to care for trees in the 
recreation area.  PSM Belser reported that work has been beneficial to the health of 
the trees and lessening the risks in the park.  The trees are a natural condition of the 
park. 
 
PSM Belser reported that the fishing tournament during the weekend was attended by 
approximately ten participants and there were several 8-pound trout caught during the 
event.  The Committee was reminded of the trout plant that occurred during late 
November. 

 
4. Consideration of the purchase of two EZ-Go Carts. 

PSM Belser presented to the Committee the request to purchase two carts rather than 
lease the same carts.  The action to purchase is beyond current budget to lease, but 
will save the District over $2,400 in finance/lease charges.  The Committee discussed 
the current status of the leased and purchased carts and noted the termination of 
existing leased cart contracts.  The staff request to make this purchase above the 
current budget authorization will be brought to the Board for consideration and 
approval. 

 
5. Review the Draft 2012 Casitas Water Adventure End of Season Report. 

PSM Belser and PSO Wall presented to the Committee the subject report.  The key 
highlights expressed by PSO Wall were (1) the increase in season’s attendance that is 
primarily due to good weather, (2) the improved performance of the filtration system 
due to the change in filter sand and river coating, and (3) no staff or patron injuries 



other than minor first aid needs.  The Committee discussed in general terms several 
improvement ideas that staff may look further into in the future.  The Committee 
expressed appreciation for a good report and a successful summer at the Casitas 
Water Adventure. 
 
PSM Belser stated that very soon the District will be implementing the Life Scan 
process that is required by law.  The Committee discussed in general terms the 
purpose and need for the Life Scan process.  Staff will move to implementation in a 
timely manner. 
 
The Draft 2012 Casitas Water Adventure End of Season Report will be presented at 
the next regular meeting of the Board of Directors. 

 
6. Updates from the meeting with the Bureau of Reclamation. 

PSM Belser reported on the recent meetings with David Woolley, USBR, regarding 
recreation funding assistance.  PSM Belser and Mr. Woolley are identifying specific 
projects and administration costs that will receive funding assistance.  The meetings 
have been very positive and beneficial toward our working relationships.  
 
GM Steve Wickstrum reported on the discussion with Mr. Woolley regarding 
management of the Teague Watershed and status of the Interim Agreement with the 
Bureau.  The Bureau is interested in cleaning up the agreements it has with the US 
Forest Service and the District. 
 

7. Review of Incidents and Comments. 
PSM Belser reported that there had been a breach of the storage area fencing and a 
report of stolen propane tanks. 
 
PSM Belser shared letters from the Comets Club concerning positive interactions with 
staff during recent Club events.  The compliments to staff are very much appreciated 
and well deserved.   

 



 1

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
 
DATE:  December 6, 2012 
 
TO:         Steve Wickstrum, General Manager 
 
FROM: Aaron Wall, Park Services Officer III 
 
Copy:  Carol Belser, Park Services Manager 
 
Re:  2012 Casitas Water Adventure End of Season Report 
______________________________________________________________________ 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Receive and file. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
The attached report summarizes the financial information and staff activities for the Water 
Adventure 2012 season which spans the 2011 and 2012 fiscal years. On December 3rd, 2012 the 
Recreation Committee reviewed and approved the report to be forwarded to the Board for the 
December 12th meeting. 
 



Casitas Water 
Adventure 

End of Season Report
2012



Introduction		 	 	 	 	 	 	 1
	 Introductory	statement	of	the	intentions	of	the	end	of	season	report.

Executive	Summary	 	 	 	 	 	 	 						1
	 	A	management	summary	of	the	2012	season.

Financial	Summary	 	 	 	 	 	 2-5
	 Break	down	of	the	quantifiable	figures	of	the	season	focusing	on	accounting.

Marketing	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 6
	 Marketing	strategies	and	techniques	utilized	throughout	the	season	and	the		
	 results	of	these	efforts.

Maintenance		 	 	 	 	 	 	 7-9
	 Description	of	features	in	the	Casitas	Water	Adventure	and	the	steps	taken	to		
	 keep	them	maintained.

Operations	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 10
	 Daily	operational	environment,	systems	and	issues	addressed	during	the	
	 season.

Special	Activities	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 11
	 Aquatic	programs	of	the	2012	season.

Conclusion	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 12
	 Reflection	on	the	2012	season	and	future	goals	for	Casitas	Water	Adventure.

Table of Contents



1

Introduction	
	 This	end	of	season	report	was	created	with	the	intention	of	summarizing	and	detailing	the	daily	
operations,	goals,	financial	status	and	business	plan	for	Casitas	Water	Adventure	(CWA)	and	to	update	
Casitas	Municipal	Water	District	management	on	how	CWA	is	meeting	the	set	expectations.	It	also	details	
the	many	steps	and	processes	required	to	meet	these	expectations	and	produce	a	successful	CWA	season.

Executive	Summary	
	 In	the	2012	season	CWA	attendance	increased	by	10,192	patrons	from	the	previous	season.	
This	is	believed	to	be	due	to	the	great	weather	we	experienced.	CWA	saw	an	increase	in	net	surplus	
of	$153,339.46		exceeding	last	season	by	$138,535.38.	This	increase	in	net	surplus	is	due	to	the	large	
increase	in	attendance	and	a	small	decrease	in	service	and	supply	spending.	CWA	enjoyed	an	quality	
group	of	employees	this	season,	a	large	portion	of	which	were	returning	staff	that	reduce	the	training	time	
needed	to	bring	employees	up	to	speed.	The	CWA	received	another	successful	audit	and	permit	to	operate	
as	an	amusement	park	ride	under	the	Department	of	Health	and	Safety	with	no	reportable	emergencies	in	
the	Lazy	River.	

Introduction



2

Financial Summary

Total	Reservation	Fees
Total	Group	Sales
Total	Single	Splash	Pass	Sales
Total	5	After	5	Sales
Total	Next	Day	Pass	Sales
Total	Season	Pass	Sales
Total	Locker	Key	Sales
Total	Water	Fitness	Pass	Sales
Total	Water	Fitness	10	Pass	Sales
Total	Junior	Lifeguard	Sales
Total	Shade	Rental	Fees
Total	Shower	Fees
Concessionaire	
Total	Revenue

Salaries	and	Benefits
Services	and	supplies
Administrative	Overhead
Total	Expenses

Net	Surplus

$6,562.50
$53,500.00

$566,166.00
$60,715.00
$14,420.00
$20,475.00

$1,083.00
$2,894.00
$4,380.00

$0.00
$5,175.00

$14,824.25
$3,174.00

$753,368.75

$332,738.61
$177,742.74
$164,340.30
$674,821.65

$78,547.10

$7,017.50
$54,720.00

$523,764.00
$66,135.00
$12,670.00
$19,565.00

$1,158.00
$3,504.00
$5,460.00
$3,360.00
$5,550.00

$14,236.50
$4,381.86

$721,521.86

$284,796.81
$153,244.60
$129,846.99
$567,888.40

$153,633.46

($867.78)
($18,210.00)
$122,100.00	

$7,720.00	
($12,670.00)

$23,377.50	
$11,014.00	

$7,724.00	
$527.50	

$7,500.00	
$4,730.00	
($638.00)
$1,993.14	

$154,300.36	

$3,351.05	
($14,344.12)

$26,758.05	
$15,764.98	

$138,535.38

Revenue

Expenditures

Net	Surplus

Difference2010
$6,149.72

$36,510	
$645,864

$73,855
$0

$42,942.50
$12,172.00
$11,228.00

$5,987.50
$10,860.00
$10,280.00
$13,598.50

$6,375.00
$875,822.22

$288,147.86
$138,900.48
$156,605.04
$583,653.38

$292,168.84

2011 2012



3

Financial Summary

Full	Days	of	Operation
Total	Days	of	Operation
Average	Daily	Attendance
Total	Attendance

Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday

Average	Per	Capita	Revenue
Average	Per	Capita	Expense
Average	Per	Capita	Net	Surplus

Average	Daily	Revenue
Average	Daily	Cost	of	Operations
Average	Daily	Net	Profit

Average	Hourly	Revenue
Average	Hourly	Cost	of	Operations
Average	Hourly	Net	Profit

88
88

734
64,601

585
501
562
623
628

1182
835

$11.16	
$8.17	
$2.99

$8,195.77	
$6,453.28	
$1,742.49	

$1,170.82	
$921.90	
$248.93	

83
83

901
74,793

710
720
779
635
678

1405
1000

$11.71
$7.80
$3.91

$10,552.07
$7,031.97
$3,520.11

$1,440.50
$959.96
$480.54

(5)
(5)

167
10,192

125
219
217

12
50

223
165

$0.55
($0.37)

$0.92	

$2,356.30	
$578.69	

$1,777.62	

$269.68	
$38.06	

$231.62	

2010Attendance	Totals

Attendance	Averages	
By	Weekday

Attendance	Spending

90
90

734
66,069

553
478
590
624
718

1352
713

$11.40	
$10.21

$1.19

$8,370.76	
$7,498.02	

$872.75

$1,195.82	
$1071.15

$124.68

2011 2012 Difference



2011 Average Daily Attendance

12%

9%

10%

11%

11%

28%

19%

Monday

Tuesday

Wednesday

Thursday

Friday

Saturday

Sunday

2011 Daily Attendance with Temperature

2012 Average Daily Attendance

4

Financial Summary



5

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

105

110

5/
18
/1
2

5/
25
/1
2

6/
1/
12

6/
8/
12

6/
15
/1
2

6/
22
/1
2

6/
29
/1
2

7/
6/
12

7/
13
/1
2

7/
20
/1
2

7/
27
/1
2

8/
3/
12

8/
10
/1
2

8/
17
/1
2

8/
24
/1
2

8/
31
/1
2

12%

10%

11%

9%

10%

27%

21% Monday

Tuesday

Wednesday

Thursday

Friday

Saturday

Sunday

2012 Daily Attendance with Temperature

2012 Average Daily Attendance

Financial Summary



6

	 This	year’s	marketing	plan	included	a	
group	sales	coordinator,	television	commercials,	
e-mail	blasts	from	our	customer	databases	as	well	
as	the	growth	of	our	facebook	page.	

E-mail
	 Last	season’s	e-mail	addresses	
were	used	to	market	season	passes	as	well	
as	our	programs	for	the	2012	season.	Each	
of	our	season	pass	holders	from	the	2011	
season	were	also	invited	to	our	free	soft	
opening.	This	gave	customers	a	means	
to	connect	with	CWA	staff	to	purchase	
and	receive	their	redesigned	2012	season	
passes.	We	also	look	forward	to	being	
able	to	e-mail	our	customers	to	promote	the	2013	
season	from	the	data	we	collected	during	online	
ticket	sales	for	the	2012	season.		

Television Commercial 
	 KEYT	aired	a	pair	of	15	second	teaser	
commercials	multiple	times	a	day	for	a	week	prior	
to	the	2012	season	opening.	By	dealing	directly	
with	KEYT,	CWA	was	offered	a	complimentary	
commercial	shoot	and	several	extra	time	slots	that	
aired	the	new	commercial.		In	addition	they	were	
also	able	to	place	us	on	their	web	site	for	free	for	
additional	customer	reach.		This	year	we	tried	to	
focus	on	promoting	our	programs	such	as	Junior	
Lifeguards	and	Water	Aerobics.		We	also	have	

enough	stock	footage	to	be	able	to	create	a	new	
commercial	next	year	and	tailor	it	to	whatever	we	
want	without	having	to	rush	to	shoot	during	the	soft	
opening	

Web Site
	 The	CWA	went	live	this	season	with	online	
ticket	sales.	The	Casitas	web	site	linked	to	an	off-
site	point	of	sales	server	giving	our	customers	the	
ability	to	reserve	their	water	park	tickets	from	the	
comfort	of	their	own	homes.	

Face Book
		 Staff	used	facebook	to	market	and	
communicate	with	loyal	CWA	customers	about	
commonly	asked	questions	concerning	admissions	
rules	and	amenities	offered	at	our	facility.	Facebook	
offers	a	common	ground	for	our	customers	to	
communicate	with	each	other	providing	staff	and	
the	public	with	valued	marketing	information.

Marketing



7

CWA	requires	ongoing	maintenance.	This	season	
we	were	able	to	identify	several	problem	areas	
which	required	repair	both	leading	up	to	the	
season	as	well	as	during	the	season	itself.		CWA	
maintenance	program	is	run	through	a	series	of	
documented	seasonal	facility	inspections,	daily	
employee	safety	checks	and	incident	reports.

Water	Playground
	 The	water	playground	maintenance	focused	
on	addressing	the	issues	of	aging	equipment	and	
safety	by	prioritizing	maintenance	tasks.	The	
following	items	were	successfully	addressed	to	
create	a	clean	and	safe	environment	in	the	water	
park.	

Slide Repair-	CWA	staff	replaced	a	30	degree	
slide	section.	On	average,	CWA	staff	have	replaced	
about	2	slide	sections	per	year	for	the	last	4	years	
due	to	cracking	at	the	joints	of	the	slide	sections	

Interactive Wheels and Hoses-	Two	of	the	
hand	wheels	on	the	water	playground	which	had	
cracked	at	the	end	of	the	previous	season	were	
replaced.		These	wheels	are	the	key	to	interacting	
with	the	structure	and	receive	constant	use	
during	the	season.	Due	to	the	age	of	the	structure	
the	replacement	parts	have	to	be	prefabricated.	
Directional	water	hoses	were	also	replaced.	These	
sections	of	hose	that	allow	children	to	spray	water	
require	additional	fabrication	to	reduce	the	risk	of	
injury.

Slide Mats-	During	the	season	the	mats	at	base	
of	the	slides	began	to	break	apart	and	besides	the	
chunks	causing	a	tripping	hazard	at	the	base	of	the	
slides	there	was	also	added	debris	going	through	
our	filters	and	strainer	basket.		This	is	something	

that	we	will	need	to	repair	before	the	upcoming	
2013	season.		

Lazy	River
	 The	Lazy	River	maintenance	focused	
on	addressing	the	issue	of	aging	and	safety	by	
prioritizing	maintenance	tasks	based	on	the	review	
of	previous	years’	incident	reports.	The	following	
items	were	addressed	to	create	a	clean	and	safe	
environment	in	the	water	park.	

Lazy River Resurfacing-	The	pool	shell	of	the	
Lazy	River	was	resurfaced	with	epoxy	this	season	
as	a	capital	project.	The	contractor	sand	blasted,	
patched	and	applied	2+	layers	of	epoxy	to	the	pool	
shell.	During	the	installation	the	epoxy	was	found	
to	have	a	very	slick	surface	so	aggregate	was	added	
to	all	of	the	sloped	entrances	to	prevent	slip-and-
falls	when	entering	the	lazy	river.	Although	the	
aggregate	helped	prevent	tripping	and	falling	which	
could	result	in	head,	neck	or	back	injuries	there	
were	an	increased	number	of	cuts	and	scrapes	on	

Maintenance



8

patrons’	feet	resulting	from	the	addition	of	the	
aggregate.		
	
Replaced Media in River Filters-	During	
the	2011	season	the	Lazy	River	was	forced	to	close	
numerous	times	due	to	water	quality	problems.		
During	the	offseason	all	the	sand	in	the	Lazy	River	
filters	was	removed	and	replaced.		As	a	result	of	
the	new	clean	filter	media	we	did	not	have	to	close	
the	river	a	single	time	due	to	water	quality,	and	in	
addition	we	were	able	to	save	money	because	of	
fewer	chemical	purchases	throughout	the	season.		

Backwash Tanks-	Staff	repaired	the	backwash	
tanks	and	plumbing	to	ensure	that	the	tanks	were	
able	to	operate	at	proper	capacity	and	reduce	
chances	of	backwash	overflow	in	the	parking	lot.		

Bridge and Misters-	The	bridges	and	railings	
had	some	areas	that	had	rusted	and	required	
sanding,	repair	and	painting.		Any	holes	were	
patched	and	sealed	and	a	new	coat	of	paint	was	
applied	to	all	the	bridges.		Additionally	the	misters	
were	repaired	and	secured	to	the	bottom	of	the	
bridge.		

Ropes	Around	Lazy	River
One	of	the	main	Lazy	River	Rule	violations	is	
patrons	entering	from	the	side	wall	and	not	in	the	
designated	entry	points.		To	solve	this	problem	we	
will	be	putting	in	a	barrier	during	the	offseason	
consisting	of	ropes	and	poles	just	as	we	have	
around	the	rest	of	the	river.		The	section	that	we	
will	be	doing	this	is	on	the	inside	of	the	river	from	
the	handicap	entrance	wrapping	around	the	splash	
pad	and	ending	near	the	finger	sprayers.		This	is	
the	only	area	that	is	not	blocked	by	either	ropes	or	
pampas	grass.		

Splash	
Pad	
	 The	
splash	pad	
maintenance	
consisted	of	mid	
season	repair	
and	a	security	
installation.

Mats-	The	
rubber	flooring	
mats	have	
required	
maintenance	over	the	past	several	seasons.		Each	
season	several	of	the	sections	separate	from	the	
concrete	basin	which	requires	staff	to	shut	down	
the	splash	pad	for	several	days	in	order	to	loosen	
and	remove	the	mats,	dry	them	out	and	clean	them	
thoroughly	before	reattaching	them	to	the	concrete.	

Surge Pit Security-	Staff	added	a	new	grate	
cover	and	locking	system	to	the	opening	of	the	
splash	pad	surge	pit	to	prevent	entry	into	the	
confined	space.		

Maintenance



9

Lagoon

Paint-The	contractors	who	worked	on	the	lazy	
river	used	their	excess	epoxy	to	paint	the	lagoon,	
however	they	did	not	prep	the	lagoon	beforehand.			
Staff	removed	epoxy	coating	which	had	not	
properly	adhered	to	the	surface	due	to	the	lack	
of	prep	work.	The	contractor	has	agreed	to	repair	
the	epoxy	coating	in	the	lagoon	prior	to	the	2013	
season		

Drain-	New	pool	drain	covers	were	installed	in	
the	lagoon	last	season	for	safety	in	compliance	
with	the	Virginia	Gram	Baker	Entrapment	Act.	
These	covers	were	recalled	at	the	end	of	last	
season	by	the	manufacturer.		Staff	replaced	these	
drain	covers	at	no	cost.	

Leak-	At	the	end	of	the	2011	season	a	leak	was	
discovered	in	the	Lagoon.	The	leak	was	located	
in	plumbing		running	from	the	Lagoon	beneath	
the	Lazy	River	into	one	of	the	equipment		vaults.	
To	address	this	problem	staff	worked	with	the	
engineering	department	to	find	a	solution	that	did	
not	require	the	Lazy	River	to	be	altered	in	the	
repair	work.		The	solution	reached	was	to	relocate	
the	pump	equipment	above	ground	next	to	the	

Lagoon.	This	required	staff	to	cap-off	and	tie	into	
the	piping	next	to	the	lagoon,	lay	a	concrete	slab	
and	relocate	the	pumps	and	electrical	equipment	
next	to	the	lagoon.		Relocating	the	pumps	and	
controls	above	ground		will	reduce	the	costs	
involved	if	the	vault	floods	as	it	has	in	previous	
seasons.		As	a	result,	staff	are	no	longer	required	to	
enter	the	vault	on	a	daily	basis	reducing	the	chance	
of	injury	when	climing	down	into	the	confined	
space.		

Miscellaneous
	 The	staff	at	CWA	are	working	to	upgrade	
our	facilities,	to	make	it	as	user	friendly	and	as	
safe	as	possible.		In	listening	to	our	customer	and	
employee	feedback,	we	try	to	make	improvements	
that	are	beneficial	for	everyone	and	make	their	
experience	at	CWA	as	positive	as	possible.

Other
-Transition	volleyball	court	to	grass	picnic	area.	
-Touch	up	painting	on	play	structure	
-Installation	of	new	chemical	pumps
-Lazy	River	surge	pit	cover	upgrade	&	replacement	
-Irrigation	repair	around	the	park.		

Maintenance



10

Ticket Sales
	 This	year	the	ticket	staff	were	trained	
by	and	worked	under	the	supervision	of	the	
reservations	coordinator.	The	ticket	staff	operated	
the	ticket	windows	and	processed	admission	
tickets	at	the	front	entrance.	With	the	new	on-
line	ticketing	software	we	now	have	the	ability	to	
track	attendance	more	accurately	checking	each	
individual	customer	into	the	park.	

Concessionaire
	 The	Butcher	Shop	fulfilled	the	contract	this	
season	to	provide	food	out	of	a	temporary	building	
located	on	the	exterior	of	the	water	park	in	the	
picnic	area.	They	were	able	to	offer	swim	diapers	
and	some	other	items	in	addition	to	food.

Hours of Operation
	 CWA	continued	to	use	the	modified	
schedule	reducing	the	hours	of	daily	operation	
on	days	of	low	attendance	by	one	hour.		This	
reduction	of	60	operational	hours	over	the	
course	of	the	season	provided	a	cost	savings	of	
approximately	$13,000.00	on	staff	time	alone.		
The	CWA	schedule	has	been	created	around	the	
local	school	schedule	opening	Memorial	day	
through	Labor	day.		

Drills
	 Drills	are	an	excellent	way	to	continue	
training	as	well	as	show	the	public	that	our	staff	are	
trained	and	ready	for	emergencies.		The	best	way	
to	continue	education	and	training	is	to	use	drills	
that	combine	the	knowledge	lifeguards	learned	
in	training	with	the	realities	they	will	be	facing	
specifically	at	CWA.		Drills	were	executed	in	all	
bodies	of	water	as	well	as	on	the	pool	deck	and	
in	the	office	to	reinforce	lifeguard	skills	in	and	
out	of	the	water.		Water	drills	included	simulated	
head,	neck	and	back	injuries,	drowning	and	heart	
attack	which	required	lifeguards	to	work	as	a	team	
to	recognize	the	problem,	activate	the	EAP	and	
use	the	backboard	to	extricate	the	victim	from	the	
water.		Beside	these	drills	in	the	water,	each	CWA	
employee	was	tested	on	CPR	and	given	cognitive	
skills	tests	throughout	the	season.	

Hosts
	 Camp	hosts	play	an	integral	role	in	both	the	
preparation	for	the	season	as	well	as	the	day	to	day	
operations.		They	help	with	everyday	landscaping	
and	maintenance	to	keep	our	park	green	and	clean	
as	well	as	assist	staff	with	building	and	installation	
projects	throughout	the	park.		

Operations



11

Jr.	Guards
	 The	Jr.	Lifeguard	Program	ran	in	two	
separate	three	week	sessions	and	received	
very	positive	feedback	from	both	participants	
and	parents.		Combining	lifeguarding	and	first	
aid	basics,	fun	activities	and	field	trips	the	Jr.	
Lifeguard	Program	has	a	good	base	to	build	on	
for	next	season.		This	season	had	our	strongest	
attendance	in	years.		The	Jr.	Lifeguard	instructor	
position	was	highly	coveted	and	staff	conducted	
additional	interviews	to	determine	the	best	
candidates	as	well	as	alternatives	to	grow	the	
instructor	pool	for	next	season.		We	received	lots	
of	positive	feedback	from	parents	and	participants	
this	year	and	expect	the	program	to	continue	to	
grow.	A	growing	program	will	require	CWA	to	
provide	bus	transportation	for	the	JG	Program	in	
the	2013	season.				

Water	Aerobics	
	 The	water	aerobics	program	continues	to	
grow	with	its	success	measured	in	long	strides	
around	the	Lazy	River.		This	year	the	program	
expanded	its	weeknight	sessions	to	include	
Wednesday	nights.		Weather	is	a	factor	in	water	
park	attendance	including	programming.		During	
early	June	the	Water	Aerobics	program	experienced	
poor	attendance	but	as	the	summer	continued	and	
the	temperature	increased	the	program	numbers	
increased	as	well.		
	

Special Activities
Special	Activities
	 These	programs	are	a	great	service	to	offer	the	community.	Jr.	Guards	requires	two	of	our	most	
skilled	guards	every	day	it	is	offered.	The	morning	aerobics	program	has	a	regular	following	of	a	group	of	
local	women.	These	programs	offer	services	that	are	greatly	appreciated	by	our	core	local	customers	and	
the	Jr.	Guard	Program	is	growing	and	will	be	a	great	hiring	resource	in	the	future.



12

	 This	has	been	a	rewarding	season.	CWA	was	challenged	by	a	poor	economic	environment	but	
successfully	minimized	losses.	CWA	increased	safety	with	fewer	medical	transports	to	the	hospital,	a	
higher	level	of	training,	more	retained,	experienced	employees,	and	a	higher	level	of	accounting.	Staffing	
was	easier	to	manage	this	season	due	to	the	separation	of	ticket	sales	out	of	the	main	office,	streamlining	
the	flow	of	patrons	into	the	park	and	staff	in	the	office.

Off-Season	Goals	
	 Progress	has	become	apparent	this	season	but	there	is	always	room	for	improvement.	When	the	
lifeguards	are	sent	home	for	the	year	and	the	park	is	closed,	work	does	not	stop	at	CWA.	Here	are	four	
goals	for	the	off	season.

Live-Scan
	 We	look	forward	to	the	implementation	of	the	Board	approved	application	process	of	live-scan	for	
the	required	Department	of	Justice	background	checks	in	the	2013	season.

Xeriscaping and Water Conservation
	 As	part	of	Casitas	Municipal	Water	District,	it	is	important	that	we	serve	as	an	example	to	our	
customers	through	the	continued	expansion	of	drought	tolerant	landscaping	that	requires	less	water.	
We	successfully	upgraded	several	planters	with	drought	tolerant	landscaping	and	plan	to	continue	it	
throughout	the	park.	

Division of Occupational Safety and Health
	 Standardizing	CWA	to	DOSH	requirements	is	an	ongoing	practice.	We	look	forward	to	improving	
safety	at	CWA	to	minimize	incidents	that	require	medical	transport	to	the	hospital.	

School Fun Days
	 We	are	excited	to	work	with	local	PTAs	to	provide	school	fun	days	to	the	local	schools	in	our	
community	increasing	group	sales	at	CWA.

Conclusion









































Casitas Municipal Water District

Monthly Cost Analysis - Robles, Fisheries, Fish Passage

2012/2013

12/05/2012

Marzula & Operation Fisheries Project Name Cost of the

Marzula  of Robles Fish Passage Fish Passage

11-5-21-5049-12 11-5-??-????-14 11-5-28-50??-??

2003/2004 0.00 132,143.20 6,066.93

2004/2005 0.00 298,006.35 39,124.63 8,079,888.06

2005/2006 274,270.75 144,052.92 93,406.52 0.00

2006/2007 194,409.73 110,707.78 188,651.75 114,790.04

2007/2008 21,111.90 117,299.80 272,644.56 0.00

2008/2009 1,207.75 88,201.00 307,739.00 0.00

2009/2010 216,797.47 124,874.54 342,756.94 0.00

2010/2011 169,932.80 148,506.23 373,535.60 0.00

2011/2012 5,976.46 84,305.75 363,608.72 0.00

Expenditures

July 359.95 3,511.66 24,786.58

August 1,471.91 11,911.25 36,960.55

September 5,357.14 14,563.70 34,674.45

October 20.45 8,990.56 27,173.88

November 23.00 8,924.35 32,229.28

December

January

Feburary Less: Grants

CA Coastal Conservancy -1,750,000.00

March CA Dept of Fish & Game -1,500,000.00

CA Dept of Fish & Game -1,000,000.00

April Pacific States Marine -8,988.86

    (Timber Debris Fence)

May Pacific States Marine -18,980.00

    (Vaki Shroud)

June

Total Cost YTD 7,232.45 47,901.52 155,824.74 Total Cost TD    8,194,678.10

Less: Grant Funding    -4,277,968.86

Total Project Cost 890,939.31 1,295,999.09 2,143,359.39 Total Project Cost   3,916,709.24

Total: Operation of Robles, Fisheries and Fish Passage 7,356,067.72

Prepared by dcollin 12/05/2012 Page 1



Casitas Municipal Water District

Monthly Cost Analysis - Ojai Flow

2012/2013

12/05/2012

Services Legal Labor Other Total

& Suplies Fees Expense Services Expenses

2010/2011 0.00 42,560.00 9,100.66 0.00 51,660.66

July 0.00 0.00 479.45 0.00 479.45

August 0.00 5,094.00 1,338.47 0.00 6,432.47

September 0.00 14,853.79 179.79 0.00 15,033.58

October 0.00 4,388.00 0.00 0.00 4,388.00

November 0.00 11,718.53 868.45 0.00 12,586.98

December 0.00

January 0.00

Feburary 0.00

March 0.00

April 0.00

May 0.00

June 0.00

Total Cost YTD 0.00 36,054.32 2,866.16 Total Cost YTDTotal Cost TD    38,920.48

Total Project Cost 0.00 78,614.32 11,966.82 Total: Ojai Flow 90,581.14

Prepared by dcollin 12/05/2012 Page 1



   CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

TREASURER'S MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENTS

12/05/12

 

Type of Date of Amount of Current Rate of Date of % of Days to

Invest Institution CUSIP Maturity Deposit Mkt Value Interest Deposit Portfolio Maturity

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313379EE5 06/14/19 $1,393,598 $1,393,511 1.625% 10/03/12 10.96% 2349

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XSP930 12/13/13 $743,750 $720,734 3.125% 07/01/10 5.67% 368

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XWNB10 06/12/15 $729,603 $743,911 2.875% 07/01/10 5.85% 907

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3134A4VG60 11/17/15 $801,864 $789,516 4.750% 07/19/10 6.21% 1062

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3134G3GT10 10/18/17 $220,000 $220,207 1.250% 01/03/12 1.73% 1753

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3135G0ES80 11/15/16 $696,737 $704,398 1.375% 03/12/12 5.54% 1420

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EABA60 11/17/17 $1,211,010 $1,213,180 5.125% 01/03/12 9.54% 1782

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EABS70 09/27/13 $766,605 $722,316 4.125% 07/01/10 5.68% 292

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EACD90 07/28/14 $739,907 $730,653 3.000% 07/01/10 5.75% 593

*TB Federal Natl MTG Assn 31398AYY20 09/16/14 $739,123 $734,398 3.000% 07/01/10 5.78% 641

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828JE10 07/15/18 $1,055,030 $1,254,913 1.375% 07/06/10 9.87% 2020

*TB US Treasury Notes 912828JW10 12/31/13 $709,352 $709,597 1.500% 04/01/10 5.58% 386

*TB US Treasury Notes 912828LZ10 11/30/14 $718,129 $725,816 2.125% 07/01/10 5.71% 715

*TB US Treasury Notes 912828MB30 12/15/12 $709,707 $700,161 1.125% 06/30/10 5.51% 10

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828MF40 01/15/20 $1,041,021 $1,277,728 1.375% 07/01/10 10.05% 2560

Accrued Interest $63,816 $75,134

Total in Gov't Sec. (11-00-1055-00&1065) $12,339,252 $12,716,172 85.47%

Total Certificates of Deposit: (11.13506) $0 $0 0.00%

** LAIF as of:  (11-00-1050-00) N/A $444 $444 0.35% Estimated 0.00%

*** COVI as of: (11-00-1060-00) N/A $2,161,749 $2,161,749 0.65% Estimated 14.53%

TOTAL FUNDS INVESTED $14,501,445 $14,878,365 100.00%

Total Funds Invested last report $14,501,445 $14,918,368

Total Funds Invested 1 Yr. Ago $14,530,793 $14,793,134

**** CASH IN BANK (11-00-1000-00) EST. $3,696,608 $3,696,608

CASH IN Western Asset Money Market $7,441 $7,441 0.010%

CASH IN PIMMA Money Market $0 $0 0.000%

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS $18,205,494 $18,582,414

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS 1 YR AGO $17,743,775 $18,006,116

*CD CD - Certificate of Deposit

*TB TB - Federal Treasury Bonds or Bills 

** Local Agency Investment Fund 

*** County of Ventura Investment Fund

Estimated interest rate, actual not due at present time.

**** Cash in bank

No investments were made pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 53601, Section 53601.1 

and subdivision (i) Section 53635 of the Government Code.

All investments were made in accordance with the Treasurer's annual statement of 

investment policy.


	12-12-12 Agenda.pdf
	11-28-12 minutes
	11-27-12 special meeting min
	Reso cancelling meeting and holding sp mtg
	Bill list
	Rec Minutes 12 03 12
	CWA.2012.Memo
	_The End of Season Report 2012
	cart memo
	Matilija Dam DOG
	Board Report - Montly Costs 20012-13
	Ojai Flow - Montly Costs 20012-13
	Investment Report 12-06-2012

